

Company : Sol Infotech Pvt. Ltd. Website : www.courtkutchehry.com

#### Kerala Plantations (Additional Tax) Act, 1960

## 17 of 1960

#### CONTENTS

- 1. Short Title, Extent And Commencement
- 2. Definitions
- 3. Charge Of Plantation Tax
- 4. Return Relating To Plantations
- 5. Determination Of Extent Of Plantation And The Assessment Of
- 6. Provisional Assessment
- 7. Cancellation Of Assessment In Certain Cases
- 8. Notice Of Demand
- 9. Appeal Against Assessment, Etc
- 10. Powers Of Revision Of Board Of Revenue
- 11. Rectification Of Mistake
- 12. Power To Take Evidence On Oath, Etc
- 13. Recovery Of Plantation Tax
- 14. Mode And Time Of Recovery
- 15. <u>Refunds</u>

16. <u>Power To Set Off Amount Of Refund Against Tax Remaining</u> <u>Payable</u>

- 17. Limitation Of Claims For Refund
- 18. False Statements In Declaration
- 19. Failure To Furnish Return Or Document
- 20. Power To Call For Information
- 21. Power Of Inspection
- 22. Prosecutions
- 23. Congnizance Of Offences
- 24. Place Of Assessment
- 25. Manner Of Service Of Notice
- 26. Power To Grant Extension Of Time For Returns, Etc
- 27. Power To Make Rules
- 28. Remission Of Plantation Tax
- 29. Bar Of Suits In Civil Courts
- 30. Computation Of Period Of Limitation
- 31. Delegation Of Powers
- 32. Removal Of Difficulties

**SCHEDULE 1 :-** <u>FIRST SCHEDULE</u>

SCHEDULE 2 :- SECOND SCHEDULE

Kerala Plantations (Additional Tax) Act, 1960

#### 17 of 1960

An Act to provide for the levy of an additional tax on plantations in the State of Kerala whereas it is expedient to provide for the levy of an additional tax on plantations in the State of Kerala; Be it enacted in the Eleventh Year of the Republic of India as follows : -

#### **1.** Short Title, Extent And Commencement :-

(1) This Act may be called the Kerala Plantations (Additional Tax) Act, 1960.

(2) It extends to the whole of the State of Kerala.

(3) It shall be deemed to have come into force on the first day of April, 1960.

#### 2. Definitions :-

In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires,-

(1) "assessee" means a person by whom plantation tax or any other sum of money is payable under this Act, and includes every person in respect of whom any proceeding under this Act has been taken for the assessment of plantation tax payable by him;

(2) "appellate authority" means the appellate authority appointed by the Government ;

(3) "assessing authority" means the assessing authority appointed by the Government;

(4) company" means a company as defined in section 3 of the Companies Act, 1956 (Central Act 1 of 1956), and includes a foreign company within the meaning of section 591 of that Act;

(5) "person" means any individual or association of individuals holding any plantation for himself or for any other, or partly for himself and partly for another, whether as owner, tenant, mortgagee in possession, trustee, receiver, common manager, administrator or executor or in any capacity recognised by law and includes a Hindu undivided family, an Aliyasanthana family or branch, a Marurnakkathayam tarwad or tavazhi, a Nambudiri family or other family to which the provisions of the Kerala Nambudiri Act, 1958, apply, a firm, a company or a co-operative society registered or deemed to be registered under the Travancore-Cochin Cooperative Socie ties Act, 1951, or the Madras Co-operative Societies Act, 1932, and any institution capable of holding property;

(6) "plantation" means land used for growing one or more of the following: -

(i) cocoanut trees;

- (ii) arecanut trees;
- (iii) rubber plants;
- (iv) coffee plants:
- (v) tea plants;
- (vi) cardamom plants;
- (vii) pepper vines;
- (7) "prescribed" means prescribed by rules made under this Act;

(8) to hold" with reference to a plantation means to be in possession of the plantation as owner or as tenant or as mort gagee in possession;

(9) "valuation date" in relation to the financial year commencing on the first day of April, 1960, means the first day of September, 1960, and in relation to any other financial year for which an assessment is to be made under this Act means the first day of April of that year.

# 3. Charge Of Plantation Tax :-

(1) Subject to the other provisions contained in this Act, for every financial year commenc ing on and from the first day of April, I960, there shall be charged in respect of the lands comprised in plantations held by a person on the corresponding valuation date an additional tax (hereinafter referred to as plantation tax) at the rates specified in Schedule I; and the person holding such plantations shall be liable to pay the plantation tax.

(2) The plantation tax assessed under this Act shall be payable by the assessee for every financial year until the extent of plantations held by him is revised and the plantation tax is assessed on the basis of the revised extent under sub-sec tion (3) and from the financial year immediately following the revision the plantation tax assessed on the basis of such re vision shall be payable.

(3) The extent of plantations held by a person determined under section 5 shall ordinarily be revised at the end of five years, but the assessing authority may, either suo motu or on application by an assessee, revise the extent so determined, before the expiry of five years and where such extent has been revised as aforesaid, the plantation tax payable thereon shall be assessed on the basis of the revised extent.

(4) For purposes of the assessment of plantation tax payable by a person under this Act, the extent of plantations held by him shall be determined in the manner specified in Sche dule II.

(5) The tax charged under this section shall be in addition to the basic tax payable in respect of those lands under the Land Tax Act, 1955.

# 4. Return Relating To Plantations :-

(1) Every person who on the first day of September, 1960, holds five acres or more in extent of plantations in the aggregate shall furnish to the assessing authority so as to reach him before the thirty-first day of December, 1960, a return in the prescribed form and verified in the prescribed manner and containing such parti culars as may be prescribed.

(2) Every person who on the first day of April, 1961, or of any subsequent year, holds five acres or more in extent of plantations in the aggregate, the extent of plantations held by whom has not been determined under this Act, shall, before the first day of June of that year, furnish to the assessing authority a return as specified in sub-section (1).

(3) In the case of any person who, in the opinion of the assessing authority, holds such extent of plantations as to render such person liable to plantation tax for any financial year, the assessing authority may serve a notice in the prescribed form requiring such person to furnish within such period, not being less than thirty days as may be specified in the notice, a return in the prescribed form and verified in the prescribed manner and containing such particulars as may be provided for in the notice.

(4) If any person has not furnished a return within the time allowed by or under sub-section (1), sub-section (2) or sub-section (3) or, having furnished a return under any of those sub sections discovers any omission or wrong statement therein, he may furnish a return or a revised return, as the case may be, at any time before the assessment is made.

(5) The assessing authority may serve on any person who has made a return under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) or upon whom a notice has been served under sub-section (3), a notice requiring him, on a date to be therein specified, to pro duce or cause to be produced, such documents as such authority may require

# 5. Determination Of Extent Of Plantation And The Assessment Of :-

plantation tax

(1) If the assessing authority is satisfied that a return made under

section 4 is correct and complete, he shall, by order in writing ,determine the extent of plantations held by the assessee and assess the amount of plantation tax payable by him on the basis of such return.

(2) If the assessing authority is not satisfied that the return is correct and complete, he shall serve on the person who made the return a notice requiring him, on the date specified therein either to attend the office of the assessing authority or to pro duce, or to cause to be produced, any evidence on which such person may rely in support of the return.

(3) On the day specified in the notice under sub-section (2) or as soon afterwards as may be, the assessing authority, after considering such evidence as such person may produce and such other evidence as that authority may require on specified points, shall determine the extent of plantations held by the assessee and assess the amount of plantation tax payable by him on the basis of the extent of plantations so determined.

(4) If any person fails to make a return under sub-section (3) of section 4, or fails to comply with all the terms of a notice issued under sub-section (5) of that section or under sub-section (2) of this section, the assessing authority shall determine the extent of plantation to the best of his judgement and assess the plantation tax payable by the assessee on the basis of the extent of plantation so determined.

#### 6. Provisional Assessment :-

(1) The assessing authority may, at any time after the receipt of a return under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) or sub-section (3) of section 4, proceed to make in a summary manner a provisional assessment of the plantation tax payable by the assessee on the basis of the return and the documents, if any, accompanying it.

(2) For the avoidance of doubt it is hereby declared that the provisions of sections 13 and 14 apply in relation to any plantation tax payable in pursuance of a provisional assessment

made under sub-section (I) as if it were a regular assessment made under section 5.

(3) After a regular assessment has been made under sec tion 5, any amount paid towards a provisional assessment made under sub-section (1) shall be deemed to have been paid towards the regular assessment ; and where the amount paid towards the provisional assessment exceeds the amount payable under the

regular assessment, the excess shall be refunded to the assessee.

#### 7. Cancellation Of Assessment In Certain Cases :-

Where an assessee, within one month from the service of a notice of demand issued as hereinOafter provided, satisfies the assessing authority that he was prevented by sufficient cause from making the return required by section 4 or that he did not receive the notice issued under sub-section (3) or sub-section (5) of that section or sub-section (2) of section 5 or that he had not a reasonable opportunity to comply, or was prevented by sufficient cause from complying, with the terms of any such notice the assessing authority shall cancel the assessment and proceed to make a fresh assessment in accordance with the provisions of section 5.

#### 8. Notice Of Demand :-

When any plantation tax is due in consequence of any order passed under or in pursuance of this Act, the assessing authority shall serve on the assessee a notice of demand in the prescribed form specifying the sum so payable.

#### 9. Appeal Against Assessment, Etc :-

(1) Any assessee object ing to the extent of plantation or the amount of plantation tax assessed under section 5 or denying his liability to be assessed under this Act or objecting to any order of the assessingauthority under this Act may appeal to the appellate authority against the assessment or against such order:

Provided that no appeal shall lie in respect of an assessment made under sub-section (4) of section 5 or under section 6.

(2) The appeal shall be in the prescribed form and shall be verified in the prescribed manner.

(3) The appeal shall be presented within a period of thirty days from the date of service of the notice of demand relating to the assessment or the date of service of the order; but the appellate authority may admit an appeal presented after the expiration of the said period, if he is satisfied that the appellant had sufficient cause for not presenting it within the said period.

(4) The appellate authority shall fix a day and place for the hearing of the appeal and may from time to time adjourn the hearing and make or cause to be made such further inquiry as he thinks fit. (5) In disposing of an appeal, the appellate authority may-

(a) in the case of an order of assessment-

(i) confirm, reduce, enhance, or annul the assessment

(ij) set aside the assessment and direct the assessing authority to make a fresh assessment after such further inquiry as may be directed ; or

(b) in the case of any other order, confirm, cancel or vary such order:

Provided that an appeal shall not be disposed of unless the appellant has been given a reasonable opportunity of being heard;

Provided further that at the hearing of an appeal the assessing authority also shall have the right to be heard.

(6) The appellate authority shall, on the conclusion of the appeal, communicate the orders passed by him to the assessee and the assessing authority.

(7) The orders passed by the appellate authority shall, subject to the provisions of section 10 be final and shall not be liable to be questioned in a court of law.

# **10.** Powers Of Revision Of Board Of Revenue :-

The Board of Revenue may at any time call for and examine the record of any proceeding pending before, or disposed of by, the appellate aurthority and may pass such order in reference thereto as the Board of Revenue thinks fit:

Provided that no such order shall be passed under section without notice to the party who may be affected by the order.

## 11. Rectification Of Mistake :-

(1) The appellate authority may at any time within three years from the date of an order passed by him on appeal and the assessing authority may at any time within three years from the date of any assessment or refund order passed by him, of his own motion, rectify any mistake apparent from the record of the appeal, assessment or refund, as the case may be, and shall within the like period rectify any such mistake which has been brought to his notice by an assessee:

Provided that no such rectification shall be made having the effect of enhancing an assessment or reducing a refund unless the assessee has been given a reasonable opportunity of being heard in the matter.

(2) Where any such rectification has the effect of reducing the

assessment, the assessing authority shall make any refund which may be due to such assessee.

(3) Where any such rectification has the effect of enhancing the assessment or reducing a refund, the assessing authority shall serve on the assessee a notice of demand in the prescribed form specifying the sum payable; and such notice of demand shall be deemed to be issued under section 8 and the provisions of this Act shall apply accordingly.

## **12.** Power To Take Evidence On Oath, Etc :-

The appellate authority and the assessing authority shall, for the purposes of this Act, have the same powers as are vested in a court under the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, when trying a suit, in respect of the following matters, namely: -

(a) enforcing the attendance of any person and examin ing him on oath or affirmation;

(b) compelling the production of documents; and

(c) issuing commissions.

# **13.** Recovery Of Plantation Tax :-

Any amount specified a; payable in a notice of demand under section 8, or an order under section 9, or an order under section 10, shall be paid in such number of instalments, within such time, at such place and to such person, as may be prescribed, and any assessee failing so to pay shall be deemed to be in default.

## **<u>14.</u>** Mode And Time Of Recovery :-

(1) When the plantation tax is not paid on the due date the arrears of the tax shall bear interest at the rate of nine percent per annum from the date of default.

(2) The arrears of plantation tax and the interest, if any, thereon shall be a first charge on the interest of the holder in the plantation subject to the charge for basic tax, and shall be recoverable under the law for the time being in force relating to the recovery of arrears of land revenue; and any sale of such interest for arrears of plantation tax and interest shall be free from all encumbrances.

## 15. Refunds :-

(1) If any person satisfies the assessing authority that the amount of plantation tax paid by him for any year exceeds the amount with which such person is properly assessable under this Act for that year, he shall be entitled to a refund of any such excess.

(2) The appellate authority in the exercise of his appellate powers, if satisfied to the like effect, shall cause a refund to be made by the assessing authority of any amount found to have been wrongly paid or paid in excess.

# **<u>16.</u>** Power To Set Off Amount Of Refund Against Tax Remaining Payable :-

Where, under any of the provisions of this Act, a refund is found to be due to any person, the assessing authority or the appellate authority, as the case may be, may, in lieu of payment of the refund, set off, the amount to be refunded, or any part of that amount, against the plantation tax, if any, remaining payable by the person to whom the refund is due.

#### **17.** Limitation Of Claims For Refund :-

No claim to any refund of plantation tax under section 15 shall be admitted unless it is made within one year from the date of the order of assessment or, where an appeal or application for revision has been preferred from the order of assessment, within one year from the order in appeal or revision.

#### 18. False Statements In Declaration :-

If any person makes a statement in a verification mentioned in section 4 or sub-section (2) of section 9 which is false and which he either knows or believes to be false or does not believe to be true, he shall be deemed to have committed the offence described in section 177 of the Indian Penal Code.

#### **<u>19.</u>** Failure To Furnish Return Or Document :-

If any person fails without reasonable cause or excuse-

(a) to furnish in due lime any return specified in subsection (1) or sub-section (2) or sub-section (3) of section 4; or

(b) to produce or cause to be produced on or before the date mentioned in any notice under sub-section (5) of section 4 such documents as are referred to in the notice, he shall be punishable with fine which may extend to five rupees for every day during which the default continues.

## **20.** Power To Call For Information :-

(1) The assessing authority may serve or cause to be served on any person who, according to the assessing authority, is in possession of special knowledge in regard to the extent or other particulars regarding plantations held by an assessee, a notice requiring him to furnish information regarding any such particulars as may be necessary for the purpose of assessment of tax under this Act, and thereupon such person shall be bound to furnish such particulars as are available with him.

(2) If any person fails without reasonable cause or excuse to furnish in due time any information called for under sub section (1), he shall be punishable with fine which may extend to fifty rupees.

## **<u>21.</u>** Power Of Inspection :-

(1) The assessing authority or any other officer authorised by the Government or by the assess ing authority in this behalf may, at a ny reasonable time, enter any plantation for the purpose of collecting particulars relating thereto and may require the holder of the plantation or any other person in charge of the plantation to produce for inspection any book, register or record kept therein and ask for any information relating to the plantation ; and the holder of the plantation or other person in charge shall be bound to afford facilities for such inspection, and furnish such information as is available with him.

(2) Any person who obstructs the assessing authority or other officer authorised in the exercise of the powers conferred on him under sub-section (1) or fails to produce any book, register or record when required to be produced or furnish the available information, shall be punishable with imprisonment of either description for a term which may extend to three months or with fine which may extend to five hundred rupees or with both.

#### 22. Prosecutions :-

(1) A person shall not be proceeded against for an offence under section 18, section 19, section 20 or section 21 except at the instance of such officer as may be authorised by the Government in this behalf.

(2) Before instituting proceedings against any person under subsection (1) the officer so authorised shall call upon such person to show cause why proceedings should not be instituted against him. (3) The officer so authorised may either before or after the institution of proceedings compound any such offence other than an offence under section 21.

# 23. Congnizance Of Offences :-

No Magistrate other than a Magistrate of the first class shall try any offence under this Act

## 24. Place Of Assessment :-

The plantations held by a person shall be assessed by the assessing authority of the area in which the plantations are situated or, where the plantations are situated within the jurisdiction of two or more assessing authorities, by such assessing authority and in such manner as may be prescribed.

#### 25. Manner Of Service Of Notice :-

(1) A notice or requisition under this Act may be served on the person therein named either by post or as if it were a summons issued by a court under the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908.

(2) Any such notice or requisition may, in the case of a firm, Hindu undivided family or Aliyasanthana family or branch or Marumakkathayam tarwad or tavazhi or a Nambudiri family or other family to which the provisions of the Kerala Nambudiri Act, 1958, apply, be addressed to any member of the firm or to the Manager or Karanavan, or any adult member of the family, tarwad, tavazhi or branch and, in the case of any other association of persons, be addressed to the principal officer thereof.

## **<u>26.</u>** Power To Grant Extension Of Time For Returns, Etc :-

The assessing authority may, in his discretion, in the case of any person or class of persons, extend the date before which the return under sub-section (1) or sub-section (2) of section 4 has to be furnished or, on application by an assessee, allow him such extension or extensions of time as the authority thinks fit to furnish the return or comply with the terms of a notice under this Act.

## **<u>27.</u>** Power To Make Rules :-

(1) The Government may make rules for carrying out the purposes of this Act.

(2) In particular, and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing power, such rules may provide for all or any of the following matters, namely: -

(a) the procedure to be followed in determining whether any land is a plantation;

(b) the procedure for determining the extent of planta tions held by a person;

(c) the procedure for revising the extent of held by a person and provision for appeals from orders in such revision;

(d) the form of returns under section 4 and the manner in which they should be verified;

(e) the form of notice of demand mentioned in section 8;

(f) the mode an manner of recovery of plantation tax;

(g) the powers and duties of assessing authorities, appellate authorities and other officers under this Act, the relation of such authorities to each other and the conditions of service of such authorities;

(h) the form in which appeals under this Act shall be presented and the manner in which they shall be verified ,

(i) the form of the notice of demand mentioned in sub section (3) of section 11;

(j) the manner in which and the authority to whom applications for refund shall be made and the procedure to be followed in respect of such applications ; and

(k) all other matters expressly required or allowed by this Act to be prescribed.

(3) All rules made under this Act shall be laid for not less than fourteen days before the Legislative Assembly, as soon as possible after they are made, and shall be subject to such modi fications, whether by way of repeal or amendment, as the Legis lative Assembly may make during the session in which they are so laid or the session immediately following.

#### **<u>28.</u>** Remission Of Plantation Tax :-

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Act, the Government may remit, in whole or in part, the amount of plantation tax payable by any person if they are satisfied that it is necessary to do so on account of the failure or destruction of crops or on account of the fact that the yield in any plantation has been substantially reduced due to natural causes.

## **<u>29.</u>** Bar Of Suits In Civil Courts :-

No suit shall be brought in any civil court to set aside or modify any assessment made under this Act and no prosecution, suit or other proceeding shall lie against any officer of the Government for anything in good faith done or intended to be done under this Act.

## 30. Computation Of Period Of Limitation :-

In computing the period of limitation prescribed for any appeal under this Act the date on which the order complained of was made and the time requisite for obtaining a copy of such order shall be ex cluded.

#### 31. Delegation Of Powers :-

The Government may, by notifica tion in the Gazette, delegate any of their powers under this Act, except the power under section 27, to the Board of Revenue or other authority.

#### 32. Removal Of Difficulties :-

If any difficulty arises in giving effect to the provisions of this Act, the Government, as occasior may require, may by order do anything not inconsistent with the provisions of this Act for the purpose of removing the difficulty.

<u>SCHEDULE 1</u>

FIRST SCHEDULE

[See section 3 (1)]

Rates of plantation tax. Rate

1. Where the aggregate extent of plantations held by a person is below five acres  $\ensuremath{\mathsf{Nil}}$ 

2. Where the aggregate extent of a plantations held by a person is five acres or more-

(a) on the first two acres Nil

(b) on the remaining extent Eight rupees per acre

#### SCHEDULE 2

SECOND SCHEDULE

[See section 3 (4)]

For the purposes of the assessment of plantation tax payable by a person, the extent of plantations held by him shall be deemed to be the aggregate of the following, expressed in acres, namely : -

(i) the quotient obtained by dividing the total number of bearing cocoanut trees standing on all lands held by him by 85;

(ii) the quotient obtained by dividing the total number of bearing arecanut trees standing on all lands held by him by 600;

(iii) the quotient obtained by dividing the total number of yielding rubber plants

standing on all lands held by him by 180;

(iv) the quotient obtained by dividing the total number of yielding coffee plants standing on all lands held by him by 600;

(v) the quotient obtained by dividing the total number of yielding pepper vines standing on all lands held by him by 400;

(vi) the extent of lands on which tea plants are grown which have begun to yield crops ;

(vii) the extent of lands on which cardamom plants are grown which have begun to yield crops ;

Provided that where the total extent of land held by a person, which is cultivated with the aforesaid crops, is less than the aggregate calculated as above, the actual extent alone shall be deemed to be the extent of plantations held by him.